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Attachment No. 2:  Response to questions raised by potential bidders and their answers.
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PART I  

 
SECTION B: SCHEDULE FOR CONSTRUCTION, ALTERATIONS, REPAIRS PRICE 

 
 
B.1 The District of Columbia Office of Contracting and Procurement (OCP), on behalf of the 
 Office of Property Management (the District), is seeking a Contractor to provide all 
 labor, materials and equipment for the Rehabilitation of the Bryant Street Garage, in 
 accordance with the attached Scope, Specifications, and Drawings. 
 
B.2 The District contemplates award of a firm fixed-price contract.  The estimated price range 

for this requirement is between $5,000,000.00 and $10,000,000.00. 
  
B.3 The Contractor must bid lump sum firm fixed prices for each Line Item Number 
 (CLIN No.) and the total bid price as described below and complete the price 
 breakdown in Section B.4:  
 
            CLIN No. DESCRIPTION        LUMP SUM PRICE  
 
                01  Rehabilitation of the Bryant 
  Street Garage              = $_________________ 
 
    02  Abatement of Hazardous 

Materials (asbestos, lead, PCB, 
Mercury, hydrocarbons, bird 
Droppings and mold)            = $_________________ 

 
    03  Structural Roof Repairs 

10 ft. x 30 ft. = 300 sq. ft. x $___________/sq. ft. = $__________________ 
 
    04  Total Bid Price            = $__________________ 
 
 NOTES:   
 

(1) Contractors must bid on each CLIN line item and the total bid price.  Failure to submit 
bids on all of the line items will be grounds for the rejection of your bid. 

 
 (2) The contractor shall include in his bid price, the abatement of 2,000 sq. ft. of mold. 
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 (3) None of the windows shall be salvaged.  All of the windows shall be replaced, in 

accordance with the following: 
 
(a) Completely remove the existing steel window frames and glazing that remains 

and replace with non-operating, fixed glazing steel windows that are interior 
glazed and utilize removable stops with a continuous glazing bead.  The frames 
are to be hot dip galvanized and factory coated with a paint finish  The glazing 
is to be 1/4 inch laminated glass on the outboard lite with a low-e coating on 
the inboard face with a low white color obscure interlayer.  The inboard glass 
will be clear float glass.  The new replacement steel windows shall be 
manufactured with the same number of divisions as the existing, both 
vertically and horizontally. 

 
(b) The window frames will be considered heavy intermediate, with fully welded 

corners, ground smooth on all exposed surfaces with a minimum frame 
thickness of 1/8 inch and a minimum frame depth out to out of 1-7/16 inch. 
Acceptable manufacturers are: 
 
1. A&S Window Associates 

Glendale, New York 
Tel: (718) 275-7900 

 
   2. Hope’s Steel Windows 

Jamestown, New York 
Tel: (716) 665-5124 

 
   3. Or approved equal. 
 

(c) The contractor shall take exact field measurements of the existing windows, 
framing and glazing and replace with new. 
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ATTACHMENT NO. 2 
 
 

 
The following responses are answers to questions raised by potential bidders 
during the past several weeks.  These responses are to be considered as 
additions / clarifications to the bid document package for the Bryant Street 
Garage Renovations. 
 
1. “Contract specification section H.5.E requests that Contractor for 

composite shop drawings to coordinate the ceiling space with ductwork, 
pipes, conduits, and etc.  Please confirm if this is correct?”  The Project 
Specification states that the “Contractor shall submit composite shop 
drawing details of constricted spaces, pipe and duct spaces, mechanical 
(omit coma) equipment rooms and ceiling spaces where pipes, ducts, 
conduit (omit coma) crossover and where items such as light fixture 
housing project into the space”  This is correct. 

 
2. Is required “watchperson” to be armed or unarmed?  Disregard this 

requirement. Watchperson is not required.  
 
 
3. Since Contractor is to obtain and pay for all costs associated with 

obtaining temporary and permanent utilities and their costs are unknown, 
should an allowance be used? Please consult Section H.4 of the 
solicitation package (Bid Documents).  

 
4. Reference is made on Drawing C 103 to “Landscape Plan”. There is no 

Landscape plan in the set and there is no landscaping in the 
proposed scope of work. 

 
5.  The Civil Drawings indicate an existing chain link fence on the east, north 

and west side of the existing building and a new 8’ chain link fence on the 
east.  The issue is whether fence should be removed, replaced in whole or 
part or left in existing condition?  The existing chain link fence on the 
east and north side of the property is to be removed entirely.  A New 
8’ high heavy weight galvanized chain link fence with galvanized 
barbed wire on top is to be installed on the east and north side of the 
property, in approximately the same location as the existing fence, to 
join with the existing new chain link fence on the west side of the 
property. All trees and shrubs within five feet of either side of the 
new fence are to be removed to grade. 
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6. Would you please provide more details as to description of work for 

removal of existing buildings on Drawing C 102? There are actually three 
separate structures that are to be demolished, as follows: The metal 
shed with appurtenances on the north side of the main building, 
existing brick garage on east side of property and the one story 
metal addition on the east side of the existing building at the south 
property line. Please see Specification Section 02221 for details.  
Complete demolition including foundations and footings is required 
along with rough grading to existing grade after completion of the 
demolition. 

 
7. Drawing C 102 indicates to demo concrete pad, steps and retaining wall 

(at the bottom of the page).  However, drawing C 103 still shows that 
concrete pad, steps, and retaining wall to remain.  Are they to be removed 
or left in place?  
All items are to be removed.  Sheet C 102 is a demolition drawing; 
Sheet C 103 indicates these same items in dashed, background 
tones, indicating that they are totally removed. 

 
8. Detail A/C 112 shows a concrete sidewalk without stone base.  Is this 

correct? This is correct.  No stone base is required under the 
sidewalks. 

 
9. There are two types of retaining walls shown in the Bid Documents, one  

in the Structural Section on Sheet S 301 and one in the Civil Section on 
Sheet C 114.  Which is the correct type for this project?  Use the 
retaining wall design indicated on Sheet S 301. 

 
10. Is abatement part of the General Contract being bid?  Yes.  It is part of 

this project. 
 
 
11. On Drawing AD 101, there is demolition Note #D08 between Column line  

B1/2 and C ½ .  What is the extent of this opening?  There is no opening 
to be cut in this location. 

 
12. On Drawing  AD 101- Demolition Key Note Number D 25 in Existing Room 

124refers to demolition of a concrete column / wall guard, which does not 
exist at this location.  What is the intent for this space?  Note should be D 
12.  Entire structure to be demolished and area included in paved 
parking area. 
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13. Drawing AD 101-Demolitian Key Note D 27 at existing Mechanical Room 

indicates the existing concrete pad is to remain.  Is this correct?  It is not.  
The pad should be removed to below the adjacent concrete surface 
and filled with concrete even with adjacent surfaces. 

 
14. Drawing AD 101-There are a few existing walls in Room 103 and 110 that 

are not hatched or shaded per symbol legend.  Are these walls to remain 
or be demolished? These walls are shown as new on Drawing A 402.  
Please clarify.  Indeed the wall in Existing Rooms 103 and 110 to 
remain. They are to have an additional wall constructed in front of 
the existing wall after the plumbing is roughed in. 

 
15. Drawing AD 102-The symbol legend for wall/object to be 

demolished/removed is a solid line symbol on the legend.  It is not the 
same as the symbol legend on AD 102.  That is correct.  The dark or 
heavy line is existing, the lighter line is demolished and is only 
shown for background purposes. 

 
16. Please confirm the following notes on Underpinning on Drawing S 001 are 

correct. There is no underpinning expected on this project and no 
excavation below the water table for structural purposes and hence 
no need for a licensed surveyor to record and monitor all load 
bearing walls, piers and columns to be underpinned. 

 
17. Drawing S 101 only shows some portions of saw cut existing slab to 

create trenches for new storm lines compared to the new work required on 
Plumbing Drawing M 101.  In addition, detail 13/S201 does not have any 
profile for these trenches.   Existing slab should be cut to allow 
installation of proposed storm drains under slab.  The profile of the 
trench is up to the Contractor, both width and depth.  Drain would 
begin downward slope immediately below slab and slope downward 
to connection in new sand filter box. 

 
18. Key Note #5 on Drawing A 101, “Conc. Column / wall guard, match exist. 

See Structural Drawings.”  Structural Drawings do not direct any work to 
be done at these columns or wall guard.  Since these columns are 
poured in place concrete, there is no need for additional pipe guards.  
Ignore note # 5. 

 
19. Drawing S 101 only shows some portions of new concrete ramps that are 

shown on Architectural Drawing A 101.  Which drawing are we to follow?  
Reinforcement per S Drawings and location / extent per A Drawings. 
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20. Drawing S 102 (between columns C6 and E6-as one example) shows new 
 ductwork openings in the existing concrete slab.  Drawing AD 102 does 
 not show any demolition work related to the needed opening for new 
 ductwork.  There are other penetrations that do not appear on the 
 demolition drawings either.  How are these openings to be provided?  
 Openings needed for various trades that are not indicated on the 
 Demolition Drawings will have to be provided by the trade requiring 
 the opening. 
 
21. Note #1 of Roof Repair Note on Drawing S 103, “Roof structure is 

assumed to consist of plywood sheathing on metal roof deck.  Engineer to 
determine areas requiring repair upon removal of existing electrometric 
roof  membrane.  Plans depicting limits of required repairs to be issued 
upon  completion of condition survey.”  Is there an existing condition 
survey?  No  survey from the top of the roof has been done.  All 
observations have been from the bottom of the structural system.  
See the answer to question #88. 

 
22. There are two similar Specification Sections for Building Demolition: (1) 
 100% Submission, and (2) 100% Design Submission Submittal.  Which is 
 the correct one to follow?  Use the 100% Submission Building 
 Demolition Specification. 
 
23. There are numerous 100% Design Submittal Specification Sections, such 
 as 02230 Site Clearing, 02260 Excavation Support and Protection, 02300 
 Earthwork, 02510 Water Distribution, 02530 Sanitary Sewage, 08800 
 Glazing.  There are numerous unknowns or material options that need to 
 be identified for bidding purposes.  These Sections are reissued and 
 attached to this document. 
 
24. There are Specification Sections that are included with the bid documents 
 but not included in the Specification index.  These Sections are 02260 
 Excavation Support and Protection, 02741 Hot-Mix Asphalt Paving, 02780 
 Unit Pavers, 02920 Lawns and Grasses, 02930 Exterior Plants and 15670 
 Air Cooled Condensing Units.  Are these Sections applicable to this 
 Project?  Except for Section 02930 Exterior Plants, all are applicable 
 to Project. 
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25. Please provide the following missing Specification Sections (listed in 
 Specification Index but not included in bid documents).  Skylight 
 restoration, Ornamental Fence / Sliding Screen Gate, 03300 Concrete, 
 03930 Concrete Rehabilitation, 05100 Structural Steel, 05300 Metal Deck.  
 These Sections are included as an Attachment.  The Sliding Gate has 
 been changed to a swinging gate and there will be no skylight 
 restoration on the project, only covering of existing openings in the 
 roof that have a curb. 
 
26. Contract Specification Section B.4, Price Break Down Form indicates 
 “Intentionally Left Blank” for division 6 and 12. Where are the costs for 
 these areas of work to be noted?  Use these lines for work in these 
 Specification Sections.  Ignore the “Intentionally Left Blank” 
 notation. 
 
27. Drawing C 103 has a note that states, “All building and site construction 

should be complete by September 2007”.  However, the Contract 
Specification Section F allows 365 calendar days for completion, from 
Notice to Proceed.  Which is correct?  The correct duration and basis is 
the 365 calendar days for completion from Notice to Proceed (NTP) 
date. 

 
28. What are the conditions of the existing soil?  Please consult the 

geotechnical report issued as an addendum. 
 
29. Will there be any government occupancy of portions of the facility during 
 the performance of the work as noted in Specification Section 01732-2 
 para. 1.5.A?.  There will be no government use or occupancy of the 
 facility during the construction  phase of the work. 
 
30. Is Specification Section 02780-Unit Pavers needed on this Project?  No, it 
 is not needed.  There are no pavers in the project. 
 
31. What is the extent of the masonry restoration on this project?  There will 

be no “masonry restoration” required, although there will be some 
minor patching of current existing openings in the exterior walls. 
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32. Roof key note #38 on Drawing A 104, “C onc. Pad per struct & mech” only 
 shows at AHU-2 and EVR-1 Units.  Structural Drawing S 103 also shows 
 3” concrete pads at CU-2 and CU-3.  Are concrete pads required at CU-2 
 and CU-3?  No.  All but two pieces of equipment are placed on curbs 
 set on the new steel that is being placed to support the equipment.  
 There is currently no steel proposed for the ductless split A/C 
 system condensing unit located on the south west portion of the flat 
 roof.  This unit must have the same supplementary supporting steel 
 (C8x11.5) as the other units on the south portion of the roof. 
 
33. Are the existing parapet copings and flashing to be removed and replaced 
 per drawing AD 104, A 104 and Detail Ns/A 501?  Yes. 
 
34. Is the Key Note Information number 01 shown on East Building Elevation 
 A1 / A 201showing a New Window Assembly even though the window 
 schedule on Sheet A 602 shows that Window  10A as an existing window 
 with some replacement of glass and frame?  In addition, window type 47A 
 and 47B have similar Key Note 01.  The Key Note 01 is incorrect and 
 the information on Sheet A 602 is correct. 
 
35. Drawing S 102 has a note (at column A1), “Structure inaccessible for 
 observation due to ceiling finish.  Engineer to verify existing conditions in 
 field upon completion of demolition of plaster ceiling.”  Has the Engineer 
 conducted a survey for this area yet?  No survey has been conducted.  
 The survey will take place after the demolition is complete. 
 
36. There is a note at Detail 2 / S 301 which speaks to the lack of a Geotech 

report.  Has a report been done? The geotechnical report was issued 
as addendum.  

 
37. Drawing C 102 indicates the removal or abandonment of existing site 
 utility lines.  Is it an option to remove those utility lines completely or cut, 
 cap and abandon them?   The note requires demo / abandonment in 
 accordance with local utility company requirements, whatever that 
 may be. 
 
38. Is testing and inspection part of the scope of work for the Contractor? The 

testing will be done by the contractor with his resources. Inspection 
shall be conducted by the District. 
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39. There is a new generator, transformer and bollards shown on Drawing E 

002.  None of these items are coordinated with the Civil or Architectural 
Drawings.  Does any of this equipment require concrete pads?   The new 
Transformer requires a concrete pad and the note so states.  The 
bollards would be as required by PEPCO, TBD in field (six concrete 
filled 5” diameter steel pipes four feet above finish grade, schedule 
40 pipe, embedded thirty inches in a concrete filled hole two foot in 
diameter). The generator requires concrete pad. 

 
40. There are LFT-1 floor finishes shown on Details A1 / A 402 and J1 / A 402 
 at locker areas.  What is LFT-1?  The finish schedule now indicates 
 that LFT has been replaced by VCT (Vinyl Composition Tile). 
 
41. Specification Section 05511, 3.1.G indicates that abrasive nosings with 
 anchors embedded in precast concrete treads are to be used. Details on 
 Drawing A 404 do not show any nosings.  Which is correct?  Nosings are 
 not required.  Stairs are detailed as concrete filled metal pan treads. 
 
42. Window # 47B on Drawing A 603 does not have any indication of a sill.  
 General Note #1 on Drawing A 101 indicates that all new window 
 openings in furred walls are to receive a new sill per Detail A1 / A 501. Do 
 all new windows in furred wall receive new sills?  Yes they do. 
 
43. Drawing M 106, Note # 1 indicates, ‘Equipment rails, roof curbs, pipe 

mounting pedestals and pipe portal shall be furnished by the Mechanical 
Contractor.  Installation shall be under another division.  There are no 
details for these products to show what type of materials they are to be.  
Will there be details forthcoming?  There will be no details provided 
until the selected mechanical contractor submits  shop drawings for 
these products. Use the Industry standards for pricing requirements. 

 
44. Roof Key Note #34 on Drawing A104 (Detail J13 / A 502) direct the 

covering and sealing of the louvered sides of the skylight housing with 
painted sheet metal panels.  Please provide a Specification Section for 
this Product.  There is no Specification for these panels.  A pre-
finished galvanized steel panel will be acceptable in these locations. 
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45. Detail A1 / A401 shows the waterproofing at the elevator pit on the outside 
 face of the concrete walls.  Detail 9 / S202 indicates ¾ ” Crystalline Slurry 
 waterproofing on the inside face of the concrete walls.  Specification 
 Section 07170, 2.1 specified the waterproofing material as Geotextile / 
 Bentonite clay waterproofing (CCW MiraCLAY).  Which is the right side to 
 apply the waterproofing and what is the material intent for this elevator pit? 
 The Geotextile / Bentonite (could also be Voltex Bentonite Geotextile 
 by CETCO) is installed on outside of foundation, i.e., installed 
 against the face of the wood form work on the outside face of the pit.  
 The Crystalline Slurry is trowel applied to the inside face of the pit 
 after it is poured and the form work is stripped. 
 
46. Specification Section 07720, part 1.2 Roof Accessories specifies Roof 
 Hatches in the summary section.  However, there’s no detail description of 
 these roof hatches and the roof plan does not show any roof hatches.  Are 
 roof hatches required on this project.  No Roof Hatches are required on 
 this project. 
 
47. Drawing Sheet A 104 general note #2 says to form slope under new built 
 up roof with light weight concrete topping; Note #3 indicates to form 
 counter slopes and crickets under membrane roof with tapered roof 
 insulation.  Detail N4 / A501 shows a built-up roofing system over tapered 
 insulation with 4” minimum and a slope of 1:48; Detail N1 / A501 shows an 
 EPDM roofing system over tapered insulation with 4” minimum with a 
 slope of 1:48.  It is the intent to use tapered insulation with a 
 minimum thickness of 4”, a minimum slope of 1:48 and an EPDM 
 roof membrane.  There would be no concrete fill on the roof. 
 
48. There are numbers in the GLAZING and HARDWARE columns on the 
 Door Schedule-Drawing A601. What do these numbers represent?  The 
 GLAZING numbers refer to glass type (see Section 08800-12) and 
 HARDWARE numbers refer to hardware set numbers, which are 
 attached to this list of Bid Questions. 
 
49. Door # 111, #119, #200 and #200D are listed on the Door Schedule on 
 Sheet A 601as Hollow Metal doors and frames.  There is no Hollow Metal 
 Specification Section.  In addition, some other doors are indicated as 
 “existing opening, verify dimension”. Are these existing doors and frames 
 to be reused and refinished per the Door Schedule? 
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 Hollow Metal frames are to be one piece welded, 0.053 inch thick 
sheet steel with reinforced hardware locations for three hinges and a 
strike.  Jamb anchors to be welded to back of frame and frame to 
wrap the wall assembly.  Stop to be ½” and face dimension to be 2”. 
Frames to be delivered drilled and tapped for hardware attachment in 
Field.  Frames to be primed for field application of water based finish 
paint system.  Doors to be fabricated from same cold rolled steel, 
with closed top and bottom edges, with reinforcement for three 
hinges and hardware and a beveled edge on the strike edge of the 
door with radius corners.  Door to be primed for field finish painting. 
The existing doors and frames are to be refinished and reused. 

 
50. There are three panels on the door type D2 on the Door Schedule A 601.  
 Are there panels glass or wood?  The panels are wood. 
 
51. Specification Section08520, part 1.6.G Aluminum Supplementary 
 Windows and Specification Section 08800, 1.6.J, Glazing, refer to these 
 mockups in the building envelope wall in locations shown on the 
 Drawings.  None of these mockup locations are shown on the Drawings.  
 Are mockups required?      No mockups are required. 
 
52. Specification Section 08520, part 2.8 Glazing Schedule has many different 
 types of frosted glazing.  Are these frosted glasses to be sandblasted or 
 using an applied film to create the frosted affect on the glass?  Sandblast 
 surface or use interlayer between glass.  No surface applied films. 
 
53. Please provide missing Specification Sections for the following: Wood 
 panel garage doors, Rollup garage doors, New Suspended plaster ceiling, 
 Vinyl composition floor tile, Changing curtain and rod, Towel bar.  These 
 Specifications are included with this Addenda.  See answer # 54 
 below concerning rollup Door. 
 
54. Demolition key note # D05 indicates, “Remove and discard existing 
 garage or rollup door, including all track and support structure.” The intent 
 of this complete removal is to provide and install new overhead garage 
 doors.  However, there isn’t any detail that shows the new garage doors or 
 any new structure support systems to support the garage doors.  The 
 Door Schedule on Drawing A 601 doesn’t have any information for these 
 garage doors such as hardware.  Please provide adequate information, 
 details and/or sections for these new garage doors. 
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The door has been changed from a wood overhead panel door to a 
fiberglass overhead sectional door with power operator and new side 
rails/roller tracks  that are part of the door assembly.  Door to be 
locked closed by sliding bolts on the inside of either side of the door.  
A typical manufacturer could be The Overhead Door Corporation and 
the product would be Thermacore Heavy Duty Series Overhead 
Sectional Door Series 595 with Power Operator Model SEL.   

 
55. Specification Section 09260, part 3.2.B Gypsum Board Assemblies and 
 Section 09265, part 3.2..A Gypsum Board Shaft Wall Assemblies note 
 they are to be coordinated with sprayed fire-resistive materials.  Are 
 prayed fire-resistive materials (i.e., fireproofing) required for this project?  
 No sprayed fire proofing is required on the project. 
 
56. Specification Section 10431, part 2.5.A.9 Signage, refers to the Schedule 
 in the back of this Section.  There currently is no schedule in the back to 
 refer to.  Please provide a basis to estimate the scope of this task.  
 Assume fifty cast plastic six inch square signs with raised letters 
 and Braille symbols cast in to the surface.  There will be two new 
 cast aluminum metal signs outside either entry door to Bryant Street 
 containing the name, D.C. Government, Bryant Street Garage and the 
 address of 201 Bryant Street, N.W.  These signs are to be ¼” thick 
 with a ¼ ” brushed border and raised letters and numerals  within the 
 sign border making up the text.  The signs would be pin attached 
 from the face with decorative roses to cover the bolts. 
 
57. Drawing AD 102 has a large area at Columns A1 to A6 (on the left hand-
 side) with demolition note # 10, “Remove & discard suspended ceiling tile 
 and entire suspension system.  Remove ceiling tile and adhesive directly 
 adhered to concrete slab.”  However, Drawing A 702 has key note #04 in 
 that area, “Existing plaster ceiling.  Patch damage and apply plaster skim 
 coat.”  Are the scopes of work to remove that existing ceiling completely or 
 only patch at the damaged areas?  The intention is to retain and patch 
 where necessary. 
 
58. Rooms # 106A and # 109A on the Finish Schedule have VCT-1 floor 
 finish.  Drawing A 402 shows these two rooms have CFT-1 finish.  Which 
 is the correct floor finish?  Ceramic Floor Tile (CFT) 1 is the correct 
 floor finish. 
 
59. Specification Section 09310, part 2.2.B Ceramic Tile has glazed wall tile 
 CWT-2 and CWT-3.  The Finish Schedule only shows CWT-1 and CWT-2.  
 Is CWT-3 required?  CWT-3 is not required. 
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60. Specification Section 09651, part 2.2 indicates CFT-1 as linoleum sheet 
 flooring.  Finish Schedule shows CFT-1 as ceramic mosaic tile floor.  Is 
 the CFT-1 abbreviation for ceramic or linoleum?  The CFT abbreviation 
 is for Ceramic Floor Tile.  In addition, the Finish Schedule does not show 
 any linoleum sheet flooring finish.  Is linoleum sheet flooring required?  
 There is no linoleum sheet on the project. 
 
61. Please confirm the General Notes on Drawing A 604: 1) Paint all exposed 
 duct, pipe and conduit PNT-4; 2) All existing plaster walls and ceiling to 
 remain to receive plaster skim coat.  Does the exposed deck receive any 
 paint finish?  Exposed deck to receive PNT-4. 
 
62. Please confirm that all existing wood that remains is to be refinished?  
 This is correct. 
 
63. Specification Section 10155, part 1.2.A Toilet Compartments specifies the 
 toilet enclosures and urinal screens as baked enamel.   Part 2.1 of this 
 section shows the products as stainless steel.  Which material is correct?  
 The correct material for toilet enclosures and urinal screens is 
 brushed stainless steel. 
 
64. Specification Section 10801, part 2.2.J Toilet and Bath Accessories 
 specifies grab bar with the abbreviation as TB.  Is TB for Towel Bar and 
 GB is Grab Bar per abbreviation on Drawing A 402?  This is correct. 
 
65. There are items mentioned in the Project Specification Section 10801, 
 Toilet and Bath Accessories, but do not show on the drawing: paper towel 
 dispenser-folded-PTD-D3, liquid soap dispenser- SDW, and sanitary 
 napkin disposal unit-SND-2.  Are these items required?  All the items 
 indicated are shown on Sheet A 402 and are required. 
 
66. Specification Section 10505, part 2.3.C Metal Lockers has baked enamel 
 or zinc-plated finish for the tubular steel pedestals of the locker benches.  
 In addition, part 2.4.E has two types of identification plates: aluminum or 
 plastic plate.  Which is the correct finish / plate?  The tubular steel 
 supports should be zinc plated and the identification plates should 
 be aluminum. 
 
67. Specification Section 12494, part 1.1.A Roller Shades includes manually 
 operated roller shades.  Part 2.2.A of the roller shade schedule specifies, 
 “Shade Type 5; Motorized interior room darkening roller shades with 
 blackout fabric in all exterior windows of rooms and spaces shown on 
 Drawings, and related motor system.”  Are these roller shades motorized 
 or manually operated?  There are no motorized shades on the project.  
 Shade Type 5 does not exist. 
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68. Are all windows, existing and new to get shades?  All windows except 
 those in Rm. 106 and 106A, Women’s Locker and Toilet Room and 
 Rm. 109 and 109A, Men’s Locker and Toilet Rm. 
 
69. On Sheet C-103 Site layout: There is no definitive end to where the new 
 chain link fence ends and begins. See answer to Question # 5 above. 
 The ornamental gate is shown to be a double slide gate but there is no 
 room for this on the left side. See answer to Question # 25.   
 Along the front right of the gate a retaining wall is shown.  Will there be a 
 cut out to allow for the slide gate to properly open behind the retaining 
 wall?  The gate panels will be swinging, as stated in the answer to 
 Question # 25 and the retaining wall described is part of the required 
 existing site demolition indicated on Drawing C-102. 
 
70. On Drawing C-112 Fence Details: Chain Link Fence; what are the specs 
 for the fence?  See answer to Question #5. 
 
71. Ornamental Fence: The slide gate / fence detail gives no specifications in 

regard to posts, pickets and railing sizes.  Can we get clarification of this?  
The entire ornamental fence / gate should be of steel with welded 
attachments.  The spacing of the ½ ” square solid vertical pickets 
should be 4” o. c. with 3” square heavy steel tube as posts.  The 
channel used for all horizontal members should be 2-1/2” wide ½ ” 
leg with the picket penetrations punched and all welding from the 
bottom of the channel.  The entire fence / gate assembly is to be hot 
dip galvanized prior to installation and any damage to the finish must 
be repaired by the use of cold galvanizing prior to field painting of 
the entire assembly.   

 
72. Will the Owner employ the Testing Agency on this project? There are 

Specification Sections, 07591-1 paragraph 1.4.B and Section 08520-3 
paragraph 1.5.F.?  No, the Owner will not employ any testing agency, 
either for hazardous materials or building materials testing. But the 
contractor must seek the pre-approval from the District about their 
testing agency. 

 
73. The Door Schedule lists Hardware sets for each door, but the content of 

each set is missing.  What is each type of hardware contain?  See 
attached Hardware Schedule. 

 
74. The demolition note D 17 states to remove plaster ceilings. Are we to 

replace all ceilings or merely patch and skim coat existing plaster ceilings? 
Do the demolition necessary to install new plumbing and mechanical 
items, then patch and skim coat all existing plaster ceilings. 
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75. Please provide further description for the chain link fences and entrance 
gate.  See answer # 71 above. 

 
76. Drawing A 604, Finish Schedule, shows ACT ceiling at Room # 110 – 

Kitchenette.  Reflected Ceiling Plan A 701 lists the area as gypsum 
ceiling. Which is correct?  New ceiling in Room # 110 – Kitchenette is 
to be gypsum plaster. 

 
77. Drawing A 604, Finish Schedule indicates all concrete / masonry walls and 

plaster and exposed ceiling receive paint finishes.  Is this correct?  This is 
correct. 

 
78. Drawing C 103 shows a double sliding gate.  Is there enough room to use 

this type?   No.  See answer above to Question # 71. 
 
79. Specification Section 16231, part 2.4.B.2 – Packaged Engine Generator 

mentions fuel capacity for 8 hours continuous operation, but drawing E 
401 indicates the fuel capacity to be 24 hours sub-base tank fuel supply. 
Which is the correct fuel capacity?  Eight (8) hours of fuel capacity is 
correct. 

 
80. Are telecom, data and/or CCTV required?  They are and the necessary 

access points are shown on the Electrical New Work Power 
drawings.  These points will be accessible to a cable in the Street in 
the future. 

 
81. Section H.4 of the Solicitation (page 18) states that the Contractor shall 

meter and pay for electrical usage. Is the energy used paid by the DC 
Government?  It is not.  Contractor to pay for energy used. 

 
82. Specification Section 10155 lists the toilet compartments as “overhead 

braced”. Drawing A-402 shows the partitions as overhead mounted.  
Which is correct?  The partitions are braced with an overhead steel 
channel, as indicated on Sheet A-402.  The dropped ceiling above the 
Women’s Toilet Room is above the steel channel.   

 
83. We do not know if the existing roof membrane is adhered to the assumed 

existing plywood deck or not because we believe that there is some 
existing insulation on top of the plywood decking and then the membrane 
is adhered to the top of the insulation.  The current roof scope of work 
remains unchanged.  
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84. Drawing E002 shows a 2-way duct bank feeding the primary side of the 

Transformer with a note that indicates that the exact routing will be 
decided by Pepco.  We do not know how to quantify the cost of this work 
because the exact scope is unknown?  Use the existing drawing for 
bidding purposes.  

 
85. What is the meaning of the shaded center duplex outlet symbol?  It is 

served by the noted Emergency Power Panel. 
 
86. On Drawing E 401, does the feeder designation 1600NG extend all the 

way to the CT cabinet?  Yes it does. 
 
87. Is EMT, rigid or both per NEC requirements acceptable for conduit 

installation?  Rigid conduit is required for all power and lighting 
conduits.  Telephone / CATV and Fire Alarm may be EMT.  EMT 
conduit must have steel fittings. 

 
88. What is the extent of “structural Roof Repairs”? What is the currently 

known area of structural roof repairs?  The actual extent of “structural 
Roof Repairs” is currently unknown because the required demolition 
has not been completed.  Please see earlier answer # 21, #33, # 47 
and # 83.  The current area for structural roof repairs is estimated at 
300 Square Feet.   

 
 
 
 


